
UNITED STATES
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

In the Hatter of

Washington Public Power Supply System
Washington Nuclear Plant No. 2

Docket No. 50-397
License No. NPF-21
EA .88-211

ORDER IHPOSING CIVIL liONETARY PENALTY

Washington Public Power Supply System (Licensee) is the holder of Operating

License No. NPF-21 issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or

Commission) on December 20, 1983. The license authorizes the Licensee to

operate Washington Nuclear Plant No. 2 in accordance with the conditions

specified therein.

An inspection of the Licensee's activities was conducted from April 28 to

Hay 2, 1986, with followup reviews conducted October 6 to November 7, 1988 and

July 10 to August 23, 1989. The results of this inspection and the followup

reviews indicated that the Licensee had not conducted its activities in full

compliance with NRC requirements. A written Notice of Violation and Proposed

Imposition of Civil Penalty (Notice) was served upon the Licensee by letter

dated January 24, 1990. The Notice states the nature of the violations, the

provisions of the NRC's requirements that the Licensee. had violated, and the

amount of the civil penalty proposed for the violations. The Licensee responded

to the Notice by letter dated February 23, 1990. In its response, the Licensee

acknowledged that certain documentation deficiencies existed; however, the

Licensee disagreed with the NRC staff's evaluation of the violations and claimed



that subsequent correspondence demonstrated that a majority of the equipment

listed in the Notice could have been qualified as of the November 30, 1985

deadline for environmental qualification. Based on this, the Licensee claimed

that the problem should be categorized as no greater than a Category C and

therefore no civil penalty should be imposed. In addition, the Licensee did
'ot

believe that any regulatory purpose was served by the Notice and urges the

use of enforcement discretion and withdrawal of the civil penalty.

After consideration of the Licensee's response and the statements of fact,

explanation, and argument for withdrawal of the civil penalty cortained therein,

the Deputy Executive Director for Nuclear Materials Safety, Safeguards, and

Operations Support has determined, as set forth in the Appendix to this Order,

that the violations occurred as stated and that the penalty proposed for the

,violations designated, in the Notice should be imposed.

IV

In view of the foregoing and pursuant to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act

of 1954, as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 2282, and 10 CFR 2.205, IT IS HEREBY

ORDERED THAT:

The Licensee shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of $ 50,000 within 30

days of the date of this Order, by check, draft, or money order, payable



to the Treasurer of the United States and mailed to the Director, Office

of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document

Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555.

The Licensee may request a. hearing within 30 days of the date of this Order.

A request for a hearing should be clearly marked as a "Request for an Enforcement

Hearing" and shall be addressed to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S.

Nuclear Regulatory Correission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C.

20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory

Commission and the Assistant General Counsel for Hearings and Enforcement at the

same address, to the Regional Administrator, NRC Region V, 1450 Maria Lane,

,Walnut Creek, California 94596, and the NRC Resident Inspector at MNP-2.

If a hearing is requested, the Commission will issue an Order designating the

tir,e and place of the hearing. If the Licensee fail to request a hearing

within 30 days of the date of this Order, the provisions of this Order shall

be effective without. further proceedings. If payment has not been made by

that time, the matter may be referred to the Attorney General for collection.

In the event the Licensee requests- a- hearing as provided above, the issues to

be considered at such hearing shall be:





(a) whether the Licensee was in violation of the Commission's requirements as

set forth in the Notice referenced in Section II above, and

(b) whether, on the basis of such violations this Order should be sustained.

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

Dated at Rockville, Maryland
this g [>day of May 1990.

Hug L.,Thompson, r.
D p ty Executive ire or for
N clear Materials Saf , Safeguards,

and Operations Support



APPENDIX

EVALUATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

On January 24, 1990, a Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil
Peralty (Notice) was issued for violations identified during an NRC inspection.
Mashington Public Power Supply System (Supply System or licensee) responded to
the Notice on February 23, 1990. The Supply System acknowledged that certain
documentation deficiencies existed; however, it claimed that the deficiencies
were minor and the majority of components were qualifiable. Based on this, the
licensee contended that no civil penalty should be imposed. In addition, the
licensee urged the NRC tu exer cise enforcement discretion and withdraw the
proposed civi 1 penalty. The NRC's evaluation and conclusions regarding the
licensee's requests are as follows:

Restatement of Violation

10 CFR 50.49(f), (g), and (j) required each item of electric equipment important
to safety to be qualified prior to November 30, 1985; required that a record of
the qualification be maintained; arid required one of the following methods of
qualification to be used:

(I) Testing an identical item of ecuipment under identical conditions or under
similar conditions with a supporting analysis to show that the equipment
to be qualified is acceptable.

(2) Testing a similar item of equipment with a suppcrting analysis tu show

that the equipment to be qualified is acceptable.

(3) Experience with identical or similar equipment under similar conditions
with a supporting analysis t'o show that the equipment to be qualified is
acceptable.

(4) Analysis in combination with partial type test data that supports the
c1 alytical assumptions ard conclusions.

(.ortrary to the ~bove, as of November 30, I.985, the licensee did not have
documentation of testing, analyses or experience adecuate to demonstrate that
27 Limitorque motor operators and 9 containment cooling far rotors, electrical
equipment important to safety, were environmentally qualified. Specifically,
the licensee did not adequately demonstrate qualification for: (1) 27 Limitorque
motor operators inside the containnient and steam tunnel which were installed
without T-drains and with taped splices applied to the motor leads, arid (2) the
9 fan motors inside the ci'ntainment with taped splices applied to the motor
leads.

The above violations constitute an Eg Category B prob'.em.

Civil Penalty - $ 50,000 (This Eg problem existed in excess of 100 days of
plant operation).

Summar of Licensee's Res onse

The licensee acknowledges that certain documentation deficiencies existed
after the November 30, 1985, environmental qualification deadline. However,
the licensee also claims that the majority of the components involved were
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"qualifiable" and therefore the Notice should be categorized at no greater
than a Category C violation and that no civil penalty should be imposed. In
addition, the licensee does not believe that any regulatory purpose has been
served by the Notice and urges the exercise of enforcement discretion and
withdrawal of the proposed civil penalty.

ualification of E ui ment Cited in the Notice

The licensee acknowledges that it did not have adequate documentation
of testing, analyses, or experience to demonstrate qualification of the
subject components as of November 30, 1985; however, the licensee contends
that information has been provided to the NRC staff in subsequent cor re-
spondence which demonstrated the qualification of the majority of the
equipment cited in the Notice. Specifically, it is the licensee s judgment
that approximately 12 components had doubtful qualification status.

In regard to the specific deficiencies cited in the Notice, the licensee
contends that information provided in a Limitorque letter of June I, 1989,
provided information that the Limitorque motor operators in containment
could have been qualified without T-drains. The licensee also claims that
previous discussions of qualification and correspondence dated September 17,
1986 and October 13, 1988 demonstrated the qualifiability of Limitorque
operators without T-drains installed.

The licensee contends that a letter of October 18, 1989 provided supplemental
information regarding the tape splices that were likely installed, and
established the quaIifiablity of those splices. Based on the recollection
of those who were involved with the irstallation of the tape splices inside
containment, the licensee contends that most if not all of the splices were
constructed with Okonite tape, and that engineering judgment at the time was
that these splices were qualified. The licensee claims that the steam
tunnel is a milder environment than the containment. In addition, the
licensee claims that Scotch brand tapes of various types were installed in
the steam tunnel. The licensee claims that some of the likely combinations
of tapes were qualifiable based on test results discussed in the October 18,
1989 letter. The licensee claims that testing performed after the 1986
inspection confirmed the qualification of tape splices similar to those
used at MNP-2. In addition, the licensee claims that an NRC statement in
NRC Inspection Report 50-397/89-23 appears to concur with the licensee's
position that the as-found tape splices made of Okonite were qualifiable.

Based on the above arguments, the licensee does not agree with the NRC

staff's statement ir the letter trarsmitting the Notice "that the informa-
tior, that the Supp',y System is relying on was developed well after the Eg
deadline and the end of the inspection and is provided to correct much
more than a qualification deficiency."

The license& contends that from the NRC inspection in 1986 tc correspondence
as late as November 1989, the NRC staff and licensee representatives have
been discussing the qualifiability of the Limitorque configurations. The
licensee contends that this represents a continuation of the inspection
process. Consistent with the t3odified Eg Erforcement Policy, tl e licensee
claims that because qualification was demonstrated during the inspection
period or shortly thereafter, the documentation ceficiencies do not warrant
escalated enforcement action.
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2. Based on the Number of Com onents the Severit Cate or B is Unwarranted

3.

The. licensee claims that the majority of tape splice configurations and
all motor operators that did not have T-drains installed were qualifiable.
Therefore, these components should not be considered for escalated enforce-
ment action., If only those components of doubtful qualification (claimed
by the licensee to be approximately 12) were considered, consistent with
other Eg cases, escalated enforcement action should be considered at no
more than a Category C violation. If considered a Category C, the licensee
claims full mitigation of the proposed civil penalty is warranted.

Enf'orcement Discretion

The licensee claims that it applied reasonable engineering judgment to
conclude that the as-found splice configurations were qualifiable and it
was a reasonable decision to continue operation until the April 1986
refueling outage.

The licensee'claims that the exer cise of enforcement discretion in the
general'Enforcement Policy is appropriate in this case. The licensee cites
three recent cases in which the NRC staff exercised enforcement discretion
for violations that occurred iri approximately the same time frame as those
at issue and had enforcement action delayed for varying reasons. These
cases are: Detroit Edison Company (EA 88-106), issued on February 12, .

1990; Tennessee Valley Authority (EA 89-226), issued on February I; 1990;
and the Mashington Public Power Supply System (EA 86-70), issued on
February I, 1990. The licensee claims that its Eg violations are less
significant, from both a regulatory and safety perspective, than these
other enforcement actions, while having other similar aspects. The
similarities were: issuance of a significantly delayed Notice; industry
notifications of potenitial problems were unclear; NRC regulations and
guidance did not express that qualification determinations could not be
based on reasonable documentation reviews; and the licensee took prompt
and extensive corrective actions to prevent recurrence of the violations.

NRC Evaluation of Licensee's Res onse

1. NRC Evaluation of the (uglification of E ui ment

A. Use of the terms uglified and ualifiable

Throughout its answer, without explicitly so stating, the licensee
ascribes particular meaniing to the terms "qualified" arid "qualifiable."
Specifically, the licensee appears „,to argue that a component was
qualified or qualifiable, no ma'.ter how deficient the qualification
documentation available imaediately 'following the November 30, 1985
deadlinie, if subsequenit documentation, whether available prior to the
deadline or not, could be provided to show the component's suitability
for its specified application. The NRC staff rejects this usage of
these terms.
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In order for the licensee- to qualify an electrical component important
to safety by November 30, 1985, the licensee had to have documentation
to demonstrate the component's qualification anid maintain that docu-
mentation in an auditable form. If, at the dealine, the licensee had
any equipment for which such documentation was either unavailable or
inadequate, a violation of 10 CFR 50.49 existed arid that equipment was
considered unqualified. Under the "Modified Enforcement Policy
Relating to 10 CFR 50.49" (Modified Enforcement Policy) some of those
violations are deemed of lesser significance if the licensee produces
or develops data sufficient to document qualification during or
shortly after the inspection. Alternatively, if an NRC inspector was
aware of other existing information that demonstrates the component
is acceptable for the specified use, the NRC staff may deem a viola-
tion to be of lesser significance. These. exceptions were specifically
placed in the Modified Enforcement Policy to allow the licensee to
take advantage of information available prior to the deadline that was
overlooked or initially not fully utilized. Therefore, as used by the
NRC staff, "cualifiable" means that had that existing data been
recorded or used ini the licensees files as of the deadline, there
would have beeri sufficient information to document the component's
qualification. The NRC staff must emphasize that the performance of
additional testing or analysis after the deadline cannot be used to
establish a component as qualified as of the Eg deadline.

As descr ibed in the following sections of this Appendix, the licensee
did not properly document the qualification of the Limitorque or the
containment fan motors prior to the deadline and did not during or
shortly after the inspection establish, using information available
pr ior to the deadline, that these components were acceptable for their
specified use. In fact, it is the NRC staff's position that ever using
analysis and testing performed after the deadline, the licensee could
not establish the acceptability of the components.

B. Limitor ue Motor 0 erators Without T-drains

The NRC staff considered the discussions held and correspondence
submitted which was claimed by the iicensee to demonstrate qualifi-
ability of the Limitorque motor operators without T-drains installed.
The NRC staff is not aware of any qualification test report, with or
without supplementary ana'iysis, which establishes qualification of
motor operators with RH insulationi without T-drains for in-containment
or steam tunnel conditions. Limitorque Test Report 600198 documents
testing done on motor operator s without T-drains installed and with
type H insulation. The licensee attempts to extend Limitorque Test
Report 600198 by analysis; however, the NRC staff notes the following
deficiencies:

(I) The differences between the installed motor operators using a

type RH insulation and the tested operator using type H were
. niut evaluated. It is stated that the motor manufacturer believes
.that type RH is generally superior to type H, but a specific
evaluation of the two types of insulation as applied to the WNP-2
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facility is necessary to demonstrate qualification. This evalua-
tion was not provided. In addition, Limitorque's basis for its
stated willingness to certify the applicability of Test Report
600198 to type RH insulated equipment is not given.

(2) The'qualification of motor operators without T-drains is
inconsistent with the Limitorque letter of July 10, 1984, which
states:

"... gualified Limitorque RH motors require installation of motor
'T'rains in the two lowest drain plug locations. The installa-

„ tion position of the valve/actuator assembly is not known at the
time the actuator is shipped from Limitorque. Consequently, the
motor 'T'rains are placed in the limit switch compartment with.
installation instructions at the time of actuator shipment..."

(3) The tested conditions in Limitorque Test Report 600198 terminated
at 250 degrees F, which is below the peak temperature of the
MNP-2 accident profile, and did not address the cooldown,
'condensation, and post-cooldown wetting that would exist in the
plant. Thus, the test and supporting analysis did not adequately
encompass the plant conditions at NNP-2.

Based on the above deficiencies, the NRC staff concludes that the
qualification of Limitorque motor operators without T-drains has not
been adequately demonstrated.

C. ~T

Two types of tape splices are involved: Gkonite tape splices claimed
by the licensee to have been used in Limitorque motor operators and
containment fan motors inside containment, and Scotch tape splices in
Limitorque motor operators in the steam tunnel. These splices were
installed by the licensee to connect plant cable. Although details
differed, both splice types share the same deficiencies in demonstra-
ting qualification. In each case, the installation procedure allowed
use of types of tape, including tape from other suppliers, other than
the types the licensee states were " likely" used in the plant. The
actual splice configurations were neither documented during installa-
tion nor when removed in 1986. Therefore, the documentation only
contains the licensee's estimation of the likely configuration. Not
knowing the actual configuration makes testing cr analysis to show
similarity impossible.

Even if-the NRC staff accepts that the licensee could demonstrate
the similarity of the installed splices to a certain type allowed by
the installation procedure, qualification could not be established
by reference to the Okonite test report relied on by the licensee.
Host significantly, the specimens described in the test report
contained significantly more tape than was required by the plant
installation procedure used for the installed splices. Specifically,
the tested Okonite splices had 5/16 inches of insulating layers plus
three half-lapped outer layers of tape, wl ile the splicing procedure
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used at WNP-2 allowed as little as three half-lapped layers of tape,
with an unspecified number of optional layers to form a smooth
surface. The NRC staff acknowledges that the testing was dore for a

5000 volt splice, whereas the plant application was at 480 volts;
however, the minimum amount of tape to satisfy Eg requirements was
neither determined nor analyzed by the licersee. While extrapolation
from a higher to lower voltage may be appropriate for analyzing
insulation characteristics, this extrapolation is not valid when
evaluating Eg characteristics. For the Scotch tape splices,
qualification testing by 3M was performed on splices with "numerous"
insulating-layers while those installed at WNP-2 could have been
installed by a procedure that allowed a mere half-lap insulating
layer. A certain amount of the tape used in any splice is solely
to protect the splice from the effects of the harsh environment.
Exactly what arount of tape is necessary to accomplish that function
is dependent on the type of splice, the type of tape, and the environ-
ment to which the splice is exposed. Therefore, assuming like splices
made of the same type of tape being used in the same environment, the
amount of tape necessary for Eg consideration cannot be estimated for
differerit voltage ranges by the same numerical extrapolation applied
for insulating characteristics.

The licensee claims that tests done after the 1986 inspection confirm
its engineering judgment that the tape splices were qualifiable.
However, the NRC staff does riot share that conclusion. Significant
differences existed between the splices subsequently tested and the .

installed splices. For example, the splice tests done for Commonwealth
Edison Company used an Okonite rubber cement under the splicing tape
whereas the WNP-2 procedures did not call for any cement. The licensee
has provided no discussion of the similarity of the other tested
splices as compared to the splices installed at WNP-2, as was pointed
out in the NRC staff's letter transmitting the Notice.

In its February 23, 1990 letter, the licensee asserts that a statement
in NRC Inspection Report 50-397/89-23 constitutes an endorsement of
the licensee's position. However, while there was a statement in the
report that "...these data did support the licensee's view at that
time, based upon engineering judgment, that the splices were qualified
for 480 volt applications," this was aierely a summary of the licensee's
position, and not an NRC acceptance of the licensee position.

D. Ins ection Period

For both the motor operators without T-drains installed and the tape
splices, the NRC staff disagrees that the time period from April 1986,
the time of the NRC inspection, to November 1989 should be considered
as the inspection period. While discussions occurred between the NRC

staff and the licensee from 1986 to 1989, these discussions were held
to afford the licensee opportunities to bring out all available
information regarding the Eg deficiencies that the NRC staff had

:=identified to the licersee in 1986 as were potential violations of
10 CFR 50.49. These discussions were viewed as followup to the 1986

inspection. Consequent1y, the time period for consideration of
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'- qualification information is properly the 1986 inspection period
(April 28 - May 2) or shortly thereafter, not as late as November
1989 as the licensee claims. Notwithstanding which time period is
considered, the licensee has not presented adequate information to
.demonstrate the qualification of the Limitorque motor operators and
containment-fan motors. as they were installed.

In summary, as described-in the previous discussion, the licensee has not
'demonstrated that the Limitorque motor operators and containment fan
motors were suitable for their intended function, even when consid-
ering testing done significantly after the NRC inspection in 1986.
Consequently, the 27 Limitorque motor operators and 9 containment
fan motor Eg deficiencies are considered to be significant violations
of Eg requirements and escalated enforcement action is appropriate.

.2. NRC Evaluation of E Cate or

As discussed in Paragraph I above, the NRC staff concludes 'that the tape
splices and the motor operators that did not have T-drains installed were
not demonstrated to be qualified. Therefore, consistent with previous Eg
enforcement actions, the violations involving the 36 components cited in
the Notice are properly evaluated as significant. Consequently, the
classification as an Eg Category B problem is appropriate.

3. NRC Evaluation of Enforcement Discretion

The licensee contends that it used reasonable engineering judgment to
conclude that the tape splices were qualified a»4 also to decide that
continued operation until the April 1986 refueling outage was justified.
The NRC staff disagrees that reasonable engineering judgment was used in
that the procedure used to install the splices inappropriately extrapolated
the results from previous Eg testing. The previous testing was for
splices at a higher voltage with a larger number of wraps than specified
by the installation'procedure. The significant reduction in the amount of
tape allowed by the procedure without an analysis of the impact on Eg
effectiveness is considered by the NRC staff to be unreasonable. In
addition, the NRC staff notes that licensee personnel did recommend the
field verification of certain motor operator items, such as T-drains and
internal splices, and although outages prior to the Eg deadline did occur,
this recommendation was not implemented. Not even a sampling program was
undertaken. Based on the above discussion and that concerning whether the
licensee clearly should have known of the violations presented in the
letter transmitting the Notice, the HRC staff maintains that the licensee's
organization clearly should have known that the components in the Notice
failed to meet Eg requirements as of the Eg deadline. The licensee in its
February 23, 1990 letter did not challenge the NRC staff's conclusion on
the "clearly should have known" issue.

Mhile enforcement discretion has been exercised in those cases
referenced in the licensee's letter of February 23, 1990, these
cases did not involve Eg violations. The NRC staff, with Comaission
approval, established a special enforcement policy for Eg violations
which was intended to,emphasize the potentially significant nature of



~,
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Eg violations and to give particular emphasis to timely compliance
with Eg requirements. Pursuant to the Modified Eg Enforcement Policy,
the NRC staff has issued 23 Notices involving Category A, B, or C

violations. Many of these cases have aspects similar to the VNP-2
case, including relatively old violations for which corrective actions
had already been taken. The licensee has not provided a compelling
reason for the NRC staff to-treat. this case differently from the other
E(j cases.

Based on the above discussions, the NRC staff does not consider
it appropriate to exercise enforcement discretion in this case.

NRC Conclusion

The NRC has concluded that: (1) the components listed in the Notice have not
been demo'nstrated to be qualified or qualifiable; (2) the proper Eg

category'or

the problem is a Category B, and (3) the exercise of enforcement discretion
is riot warranted in this case. Consequently, the proposed civil penalty in the
amount of $ 50,GGG should be imposed.
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